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STATE OF MAINE REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

RFP INFORMATIONAL MEETING AND 

SUBMITTED QUESTIONS & ANSWERS SUMMARY
	RFP NUMBER AND TITLE:
	202401009 Family Support Respite Care Services

	RFP ISSUED BY:
	Department of Health and Human Services, Office of Child and Family Services

	INFORMATIONAL MEETING LOCATION:
	ZOOM Meeting

	INFORMATIONAL MEETING DATE/TIME:
	March 19, 2024, 10:00 a.m., local time

	SUBMITTED QUESTIONS DUE DATE:
	March 20, 2024, no later than 11:59 p.m., local time

	QUESTION & ANSWER SUMMARY ISSUED:
	April 1, 2024

	PROPOSAL DUE DATE:
	April 17, 2024, no later than 11:59 p.m., local time

	PROPOSALS DUE TO:
	proposals@maine.gov 

	Unless specifically addressed below, all other provisions and clauses of the RFP remain unchanged.



Provided below are questions asked at the Informational Meeting and the Department’s answers.

	1
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Not provided
	Looking for clarification regarding Level I providers and the requirement of a BHP certification.

a. Will this be a requirement that will be needed for all future contracts? 

b. Will there be a grace period to allow current Level I providers to obtain a BHP certification? 

	
	Answer

	
	a. It is the intention of the Department that DSRPs obtain BHP certification. 
b. Specific requirements around the implementation of the BHP certification requirement as it relates to current DSRPs will be agreed upon between the awarded Bidder and the Department.  


	2
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Not provided
	a. Can the Department clarify the reasoning for the added minimum of 1 site-based location in each Region? 

b. Was there any survey to help support this decision as providers are not currently providing site-based care? 

c. Would there be a grace period for implementation? 

	
	Answer

	
	a. The Department included Site-based Respite Care to allow families who do not have an assigned DSRP an opportunity to utilize Respite Care Services. In addition, Site-based Respite Care will provide families flexibility to access Respite Care at a Site-based Respite Care setting if their assigned DSRP is not available. The awarded Bidder will work with the Department on one Site-based location and add locations progressively. 
b. No. 
c. The awarded Bidder, in collaboration with the Department, will have up to one (1) year to develop the first Site-based Respite Care location. 


	3
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Pat II, H3, Page 14
	Mentions that the Bidder will collaborate with the Department to research and develop an assessment tool for eligibility. 

a. Is the intent that the Department and Bidder will develop the assessment tool in year one and utilize in year two, on?
b. If not, what is the expectation for development/implementation? 

c. Based on the initial assessment, might a child or family be eligible for less than 24 hours initially, or does everyone start at 24 hours and hours are adjusted based on the results of the assessment?

	
	Answer

	
	a. The tool will be developed in Year 1 and will be used when ready if an appropriate tool does not exist. 
b. The awarded Bidder, in collaboration with the Department, will develop the assessment tool. 

c. The Department’s intent is for the initial assessment to determine the number of hours the family is eligible for, up to 24 hours, based on the family’s needs. 


	4
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Not provided
	If NAMI doesn’t apply or isn’t awarded what is the Department’s plan for transition of services?

	
	Answer

	
	The Department expects no disruption of Respite Care Services.  A transition plan would be determined between the awarded Bidder, the Department, and the current Provider. 


	5
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Not provided
	How is site-based respite different from childcare facility based on the definition?

	
	Answer

	
	Site-based Respite Care is Respite Care delivered in a group setting for eligible children by trained DSRPs.  


	6
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Not provided
	a. What is the frequency in which a child is re-assessed, i.e.: annually, bi-annually or more?

b. Could a child result with less than 24 hours per month in response to the results of the assessment? 

	
	Answer

	
	a. Children will be reassessed every 3 years. 
b. Yes. 


	7
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Not provided
	a. Can site-based respite care be facilitated through an MOU with another childcare provider? 

b. Will there be a time in which providers and families will be required to utilize site-based respite care?

	
	Answer

	
	a. Yes, as long as the Site-based Respite Care includes children eligible for Respite Care Services only and meets the requirements in the RFP. 

b. No. 


Provided below are submitted written questions received and the Department’s answers.
	1
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Not provided
	Given the significant differences between this RFP and our current one, particularly regarding site-based respite care, adjustments in family hours based on need, and regional hour changes, are you able to provide insights into the reasons behind these changes?

	
	Answer

	
	The Department included Site-based Respite Care to allow families who do not have an assigned DSRP an opportunity to utilize Respite Care Services. In addition, Site-based Respite Care will provide families flexibility to access Respite Care at a Site-based Respite Care setting if their assigned DSRP is not available. 

There will be no regional hour changes.
The initial assessment will determine the number of hours the family is eligible for, up to 24 hours, based on the family’s needs.


	2
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Not provided
	If we put in an intent to bid, do we HAVE to bid?  

	
	Answer

	
	No.


	3
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Not provided
	Will we be expected to accept an extension if no one applies or if a proposal isn’t accepted? 

	
	Answer

	
	As this is outside the scope of the RFP, the Department declines to answer.


	4
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II.A.3, page 10
	Is it expected that those families local to the site-based location will attend the site-based location? 

	
	Answer

	
	No, there is no requirement to attend Site-based Respite Care. 


	5
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II.D.6.d.i., page 12
	Can the providers’ children (under 18, who don’t need a background check) be present during a respite service?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes, on a case-by-case basis.  


	6
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II.D.6.d.ii., page 12
	Will background check forms need to include any adult who is frequently visiting the family home, not just those who reside there? If so, is there a definition of “frequently” that the bidder should follow?

	
	Answer

	
	Background checks are required for adults living in a DSRP’s home. Additional background checks will be determined on a case-by-case basis between the awarded Bidder and the Department. 


	7
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II.D.6.d.iii., pages 12-13
	How should we procure the information that’s not readily available in a background check (such as iii.4. or iii.8.)?

	
	Answer

	
	Pursuant to Part II, D.6.d.iii. 4) and 8), it is the awarded Bidder’s responsibility to immediately report and provide a written release to the Department regarding themselves or other persons residing in or frequently visiting the home who have been:

· admitted to a mental health or substance abuse treatment facility and/or involved in mental health or substance abuse counseling.  

· any investigation while licensed, registered, certified, or approved to provide Child/adult care. 


	8
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II.D.8., page 13
	Are only approved respite children allowed at these site locations or can other children be present? 

	
	Answer

	
	Site-based Respite Care shall only be provided for children eligible to receive Respite Care Services. 


	9
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II.D.8., page 13
	Can DSRPs be alone with children at these sites, or does an agency staff person need to be present? 

	
	Answer

	
	DSRPs can provide Respite Care Services without agency staff present; however, Respite Care ratios must be followed. 


	10
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II.D.8., page 13
	Would two different DSRPs be needed if the two respite children in attendance had a significant age gap, such as five and thirteen years old? 

	
	Answer

	
	Yes, with some exceptions such as if the children are from the same family. 


	11
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II.D.8., page 13
	If there is more than one DSRP at the site, who would bill for the child?

	
	Answer

	
	Each DSRP would be eligible for reimbursement at an hourly rate for providing Respite Care Services at the Site-based Respite Care location. 


	12
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II.F.1.b., page 14
	Is the introductory meeting of up to three (3) hours separate from the twenty-four (24) hour allotment? 

	
	Answer

	
	Yes, the introductory meeting does not count toward the 24 hour allotment. 


	13
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II.G.1-3., page 14
	What does “Track and report how many DSRPs were identified by the family receiving Respite Care” mean: How many different providers did they have in a month, or how many families identified/referred one or more providers upon applying for services?

	
	Answer

	
	How many DSRPs were referred by the family. 


	14
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II.H.3, page 14
	What content should the assessment tool include? 

	
	Answer

	
	Content of the assessment will be determined by the awarded Bidder and the Department. 


	15
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II.H.4, page 15
	Should a current copy of the provider’s Mandated Reporter certification be in their chart as well?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes.


	16
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II.H.4, page 15
	Please provide clarification on “appropriate medical credentials as applicable”.

	
	Answer

	
	This refers to any medical credentials, such as Certified Nursing Assistant, Registered Nurse, Occupational Therapist, required to care for a child with physical medical diagnosis. Such situations will be discussed on a case by case basis based on the need of the eligible child.  


	17
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II.I.2.b., page 15
	Is Mandated Reporter training required upon application?

	
	Answer

	
	No, the DSRP will need to complete mandated reporter training before providing Respite Care. 


	18
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II.I.4., page 15
	Can those who’ve already been grandfathered as both families and providers continue to be grandfathered?

	
	Answer

	
	The Department will address any practices of ‘grandfathering’ with the awarded Bidder.


	19
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II.J.2., page 15
	Is the supervision in J.2. from another agency the provider works for? Or does this outline the backgrounds of staff of the agency that wins the bid? 

	
	Answer

	
	Part II, J.2. allows the Department to approve a reduction in required supervision hours if the DSRP receives supervision from any agency supervisor that meets the listed education and licensing requirements, specifically:
a. Bachelor’s degree in a human services or a related field and at least two (2) years of relevant human services experience; or
b. Master’s degree in a human services or related field and at least one (1) year of relevant experience; or 

c. Valid and in good standing license to practice as a Licensed Social Worker (LSW) within the State, with at least one (1) year of relevant experience; or
d. Valid and in good standing license/credential to practice as a Licensed Professional Counselor (LPC), Licensed Clinical Professional Counselor (LCPC), Licensed Clinical Professional Counselor Conditional Clinical (LCPC-C), Licensed Clinical Social Worker (LCSW), Licensed Masters Social Worker Conditional (LMSW-C), Psychologist, Physician, or Advanced Practice Registered Nurse (APRN); 
Nationally Board Certified Behavior Analyst (BCBA); or Registered Professional Nurse with at least three (3) years’ relevant experience.


	20
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A

	Were Respite Providers/Families surveyed regarding Site-Based care and asked what their level of interest was in this programmatical change?

	
	Answer

	
	No.  


	21
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 8. Exhibit 1
	Exhibit 1 depicts the total estimated Respite Care hours per region, per month, for State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2023, and under the chart it states ‘based on SFY 2022 Data. Does this reflect the total number of respite care hours delivered during that time period or the number of respite care hours requested to be provided through the existing contract?

	
	Answer

	
	The data provided in Exhibit 1 represents the number of hours that would likely been provided in SFY2023 based on SFY2022 data. 


	22
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 8. Exhibit 1
	What are the current number of respite hours required by contract in each Region?

	
	Answer

	
	There are no requirements on the number of respite hours in each region. Respite hours are based on family need and DSRP availability. 


	23
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 8. Exhibit 1
	How many hours of respite services are currently being delivered in each Region in actuality?

	
	Answer

	
	Currently the monthly hours are:
Region 1: 392

Region 2:1416

Region 3: 959


	24
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 8. Exhibit 1
	How many children are currently being provided respite (how many children are being served to total the number of respite hours currently being provided)?

	
	Answer

	
	In February 2024 there were 169 children provided Respite Care Services. 


	25
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 8. Exhibit 1
	Is there currently a wait list of children awaiting respite services? If so, how many are on the wait list?

	
	Answer

	
	As of February 2024, there were 7 children waiting for Respite Care Services. 


	26
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 11. D. 2. b. ii. 
	For youth classified as Level II and is exhibiting physically aggressive behaviors, does the agency have discretion to screen youth for appropriateness for site-based respite care (if a child is currently demonstrating acts of aggression towards peers can the agency make the determination that the youth is ineligible for site- based respite care until which time those behaviors recede?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes, Site-based Respite Care may not be appropriate for children who exhibit behaviors that could be a risk to themselves or others.


	27
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 11. C. 6. b. 
	To date, what have been some common examples of reasons for denial for respite services?

	
	Answer

	
	Respite Care Services are denied based on not meeting eligibility requirements such as age and qualifying diagnosis. 


	28
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	n/a
	Can a family member of the family serve as the referred youth’s respite provider for in- home respite care if the individual meets the qualifications?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes, as long as the family member meets qualifications. 


	29
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 12. D. 6. c.
	For the site-based respite care location, are there any licensing standards/other standards that would need to be met? 

	
	Answer

	
	The Department will work with the awarded Bidder on any licensing requirements needed.


	30
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 12. D. 6. c.
	For the site-based respite care location, is an initial fire inspection required, and if so, are there any ongoing fire inspection requirements that need to be met?

	
	Answer

	
	The Department will work with the awarded Bidder on any licensing/inspection requirements needed. 


	31
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 12. D. 6. c.
	For the site-based respite care location, can other services of the agency be occurring in the same building as the respite services as long as there is private space for each respite service to occur?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes, as long as all licensing rules and contract requirements are being followed.


	32
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 12. D. 6. c.
	What is the child staff ratio for site-based respite care?

	
	Answer

	
	Staffing requirements will be the same for home-based Respite Care Services, one (1) DSRP for no more than four (4) children. This may change depending on the age and functioning of the children as some children approved for Respite Care will require a one-on-one DSRP.


	33
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 12. D. 6. c.
	Is there a limit on the number of youth that can be served in any one site-based respite care facility?

	
	Answer

	
	Capacity will be agreed upon between the awarded Bidder and the Department based on multiple factors including but not limited to the space being used and the need of the service. 


	34
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 12. D. 6. d. i. 
	‘Only Department-approved individuals may be present in the DSRP’s home when Children are present receiving Respite Care.’ Is it the agency’s responsibility to screen each individual who will be present, and if so, what is the process for seeking Department approval?

	
	Answer

	
	The awarded Bidder shall be responsible for background checks on individuals living in the home.  Other individuals in the home during the delivery of Respite Care Services will be assessed on a case-by-case basis with the awarded Bidder and the Department to determine if a background check is necessary. For Department approval, the awarded Bidder will reach out to the direct contact at the Department. 


	35
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 12. D. 6. d. ii. 
	Is it the responsibility of the agency to conduct the background checks of other individuals who reside in the home of the DSRP, and if so, can an estimated cost for those additional background checks be included in the budget to be considered an eligible expense?

	
	Answer

	
	The awarded Bidder is responsible for conducting background checks on any person living in the home over eighteen (18) years of age.  Background checks may be included in the budget. 


	36
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 13. D. 9. g. 
	What food serving related regulations would on-site respite facilities need to meet to serve food?

	
	Answer

	
	The Department will work with the awarded Bidder on any licensing requirements needed.


	37
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 13. D. 7. 
	‘Ensure DSRPs do not serve more than four (4) Children concurrently or Children from multiple families concurrently unless at a Site-Based Respite Care Location.’ In a situation where the respite provider for a child is unavailable (vacation, sick, etc.) and another respite provider is available to cover but is already serving 4 children from multiple families, is an exception allowed?

	
	Answer

	
	No. If a DSRP is unavailable, the family can choose to utilize the Site-based Respite Care, if appropriate.


	38
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 13. D. 8. f. i.
	In situations in which a child requires an individually assigned DSRP in the site-based location to ensure safety, how is that additional staffing expense accounted for?

	
	Answer

	
	Each DSRP would be eligible for reimbursement at an hourly rate if they are in the Site-based Respite location or providing one to one Respite Care at a home-based setting.  


	39
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 13. E. 1. b. 
	‘Ensure Emergency Respite does not exceed two thousand (2000) hours annually.’ Are these hours above the child/families initial approved Standard Respite Care Allocation of respite hours?

	
	Answer

	
	Emergency Respite Care hours are for families not yet enrolled in Respite Care and need immediate Respite Care Serves.  Emergency Respite Care ends when the family is determined eligible/ineligible for Respite Care Services.  


	40
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 13. E. 1. b.
	How many of the respite hours currently being delivered by the current provider in the category of ‘emergency respite’? 

	
	Answer

	
	Within the last year, approximately 40 hours of Emergency Respite Care were used. 


	41
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	n/a
	What is the expectation of agencies in situations in which a youth is highly aggressive and is unable to maintain their own safety or poses risk of harm to others as it pertains to offering respite services?

	
	Answer

	
	The awarded Bidder and the Department will discuss these situations on a case-by-case basis.  The awarded Bidder is not expected to provide services in unsafe situations.


	42
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	n/a
	Is there an expectation of program staff to utilize physical restraint?

	
	Answer

	
	Physical restraints are not used in Respite Care Services. 


	43
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 17, Table 1. Section c.
	What does an intake consist of?

	
	Answer

	
	An intake typically consists of meeting with the family to ensure that the family is eligible for Respite Care Services, verifying the child’s diagnoses, preferences on how Respite Care Services will be provided (at the family’s home, the DSRPs home or Site-based), and any special needs for the child. 


	44
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 17, Table 1. Section c.
	Does the intake need to be in person, or can it be virtual / by phone?

	
	Answer

	
	When possible, the intake shall be done in person, however, it may be done virtually, as needed. 


	45
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 14. F. 1. b. 
	Can the introductory meetings (up to 3 hours) for matching purposes be conducted virtually?

	
	Answer

	
	No, introductory meetings must be conducted in person. 


	46
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	n/a
	Is agency staff responsible for any transportation of youth to and from respite?

	
	Answer

	
	No. 


	47
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 14. F. 5. c. 
	Is the agency responsible for coordinating ‘alternative transportation’ (through public transportation/alternative transportation methods)?

	
	Answer

	
	No. 


	48
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	n/a
	What happens in regard to payment to the agency in the event a child is scheduled for respite and the family cancels at the last minute?

	
	Answer

	
	The Department will reimburse for actual Respite Care hours provided.  If Respite Care does not occur, the Department will not provide reimbursement. 


	49
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 14. H. 1. 
	Is there a specific record keeping system required or do agencies develop/provide the record keeping system?

	
	Answer

	
	It is at the Bidder’s discretion.


	50
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 9. D. 
	To confirm, will there only be one award statewide?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes.


	51
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 22/23. Section II and III.
	Is there a page limit to Appendix C or Appendix F?

	
	Answer

	
	No.


	52
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 22/23. Section II and III.
	Can charts/grids be used in Appendix C and Appendix F?

	
	Answer

	
	It’s at the Bidder’s discretion.


	53
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 22/23. Section II. and III
	Should Appendix C and F be single or double spaced?

	
	Answer

	
	It’s at the Bidder’s discretion.


	54
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 24. Section IV
	Should the budget be submitted in Excel or PDF format?

	
	Answer

	
	The Budget Form must be submitted as an Excel file and the Budget Narrative must be submitted as a PDF.


	55
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 6. Definitions
	‘The hours allotted to an eligible family to receive Respite Care. The maximum Standard Respite Care Hour Allocation per family includes twenty-four (24) hours per month, with a total of two-hundred eighty-eight (288) hours per year.’ Is this per child or per family? For example, if a parent has 3 children eligible for respite, would each child potentially receive up to 24 hours per month?

	
	Answer

	
	Per family. 


	56
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 14. F. 
	Is this a cost-settled contract or fee for service contract? Page 14, H. appears to only allow billing for direct care hours as evidenced by the statement in the RFP that states, ‘Ensure hourly reimbursement is based upon the actual amount paid to the DSRP. Hourly reimbursement shall not include benefit costs.’ However, the budget information provided is cost settled documentation. If the statement in this section is correct, how would the agency receive reimbursement for all of the other expenses associated with program operations?

	
	Answer

	
	The contract will be cost-settled. The hourly reimbursement is based on what is directly paid to the DSRP. The Department will reimburse for other expenses as agreed upon during the contract process. 


	57
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 14. F. 3. 
	‘Ensure families with more than one (1) eligible Child receive additional payment hours for services at the rate of one dollar ($1) per hour per additional eligible Child up three (3) additional Children.’ This reads as though the agency is paying the parent directly for the children receiving a respite service. Can this be clarified?

	
	Answer

	
	Payment for Respite Care is given to the DSRP, not the family. 


	58
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 15. J. 1.
	Can the amount of supervision provided to DSRP’s be pro-rated depending on number of hours worked per week? For example, if an individual works 20 hours per week would they receive half the amount of supervision required per the RFP?

	
	Answer

	
	Supervision cannot be prorated. 
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